

MEMORANDUM

The Senate Committee on Curriculum, Admission and Studies Policy (SCCASP)

To: Senate
From: Julia Wallace, Chair of SCCASP
Date: March 28th, 2025
Subject: Regulation Changes 2025/26

For Senate approval

1. Continuous registration requirement, 0000-level course prohibition

Motion: That Senate approves the revisions to Regulations TBD-2267: R-UG-Nursing effective for the 2025/26 Undergraduate Calendar as presented.

Attachment: TBD-2267: R-UG-Nursing

2. Senate Policy on Social Work Professional Suitability

Motion: That Senate approves the revisions to Regulations R-UG-SW: R-UG-Social Work Professional Suitability Policy effective for the 2025/26 Undergraduate Calendar as presented.

Attachment: R-UG-SW: R-UG-Social Work Professional Suitability Policy

3. Continuous registration for Nursing added as an exception to regularly scheduled breaks

Motion: That Senate approves the revisions to Regulations TBD-1844: R-UG-2.1.2 Full and Part-time Study effective for the 2025/26 Undergraduate Calendar as presented.

Attachment: TBD-1844: R-UG-2.1.2 Full and Part-time Study

4. BAS Design non-Honours removed, 13.5 residence for Nursing added

Motion: That Senate approves the revisions to Regulations TBD-1839: R-UG-2.2.2/3.4.1 Minimum Number of Residency Credits effective for the 2025/26 Undergraduate Calendar as presented.

Attachment: TBD-1839: R-UG-2.2.2/3.4.1 Minimum Number of Residency Credits

5. Restrictions on credit added for programs offered by Sprott, BScN

Motion: That Senate approves the revisions to Regulations TBD-1868: R-UG-3.1.14 Restrictions on Credit for Certain Courses effective for the 2025/26 Undergraduate Calendar as presented.

Attachment: TBD-1868: R-UG-3.1.14 Restrictions on Credit for Certain Courses

6. Adding Nursing Registration to Reg 3.1.3

Motion: That Senate approves the revisions to Regulations TBD-1853: R-UG-3.1.3 Absence from the University effective for the 2025/26 Undergraduate Calendar as presented.

Attachment: TBD-1853: R-UG-3.1.3 Absence from the University

7. ACE regulation for BCyber

Motion: That Senate approves the revisions to Regulations TBD-2308: R-UG-3.2.7 Bachelor of Cybersecurity effective for the 2025/26 Undergraduate Calendar as presented.

Attachment: TBD-2308: R-UG-3.2.7 Bachelor of Cybersecurity

8. ACE regulation for BDS

Motion: That Senate approves the revisions to Regulations TBD-2307: R-UG-3.2.7 Bachelor of Data Science effective for the 2025/26 Undergraduate Calendar as presented.

Attachment: TBD-2307: R-UG-3.2.7 Bachelor of Data Science

9. BPAPM advanced standing decision

Motion: That Senate approves the revisions to Regulations TBD-1378: R-ADM-Program-B.P.A.P.M. effective for the 2025/26 Undergraduate Calendar as presented.

Attachment: TBD-1378: R-ADM-Program-B.P.A.P.M.

For Information

1. *Attachment: GR_2526_MinorMods_2025Mar04*
2. *Attachment: UG_2526_MinorMods_2025Mar18*

Program Change Request

Date Submitted: 03/07/25 4:30 pm

Viewing: **TBD-2267 : R-UG-Nursing**

Last approved: 12/10/24 11:18 am

Last edit: 03/07/25 4:30 pm

Last modified by: angelwagner

Changes proposed by: angelwagner

In Workflow

- 1. REG-RO ChairDir UG
- 2. PRE SCCASP
- 3. SCCASP
- 4. PRE CalEditor
- 5. CalEditor

Approval Path

- 1. 03/07/25 4:23 pm
Angel Wagner
(angelwagner): Rollback to Initiator
- 2. 03/14/25 10:41 am
Erika Strathearn
(erikastrathearn):
Approved for REG-RO
ChairDir UG

History

- 1. Dec 10, 2024 by Natalie Phelan (nataliephelan)

Calendar Pages Using this Program Nursing

Effective Date	2025-26
Workflow	<u>minormod</u> majormod
Program Code	TBD-2267
Level	Undergraduate
Faculty	Not Applicable
Academic Unit	Regulations: RO
Degree	
Title	R-UG-Nursing

Program Requirements

Regulations

The regulations presented ~~In addition to the requirements listed here, students~~ in this section apply to the ~~the~~ B.Sc.N. program. In addition to ~~must satisfy~~ the requirements presented here, students must satisfy the University Regulations common to all undergraduate students including ~~(see the Academic Regulations of the process of Academic Continuation Evaluation (see the Academic Regulations University section of the University section of this Calendar).~~

Graduation

Students are required to pass all clinical practicums to graduate from the B.Sc.N.

Registration

Continuous registration in the B.Sc.N. is required to maintain active status, superseding any regularly scheduled breaks. Failure to register in any term of prescribed study will result in the student being required to withdraw from the program.

Residency Requirement

To be eligible to graduate from the B.Sc.N., students must present a minimum of 13.5 residency credits in their degree program.

Transferability of credits will be assessed on a case-by-case basis.

Transfer of Credit Subsequent to Admission

Students in the B.Sc.N. program will not be permitted to participate in the International Exchange Program. B.Sc.N. students can take elective courses on a Letter of Permission (LOP) with the approval of the department. Students are not permitted to take non-elective B.Sc.N. program courses or NURS courses on LOP or through the University of Ottawa Exchange program.

0000-Level Courses

Students in the B.Sc.N. programs may not count any 0000-level courses for credit toward their degree. Such students may, however, be required to take one or more of these courses to replace missing program prerequisites in which case the courses will be set aside as “no credit for degree” (NCD).

Senate Policy on Nursing Professional Suitability and the Carleton University Bachelor of Science in Nursing Conduct Policy

The regulations, procedures, and sanctions concerning Academic Offences and Offences of Conduct of Carleton University apply to student discipline on-campus. These regulations are described in the Carleton University Undergraduate Calendar.

In addition, students in the Bachelor of Science in Nursing (Honours) are expected to conform to the College of Nurses of Ontario/Ordre Des infirmiers de l'Ontario Practice Standard's and Practice Guidelines, and the Canadian Nurses

Association's Code of Ethics for Registered Nurses both on- and off-campus. Students who violate these codes of ethics may be required, in accordance with the Senate Policy on Nursing Professional Suitability, to withdraw from the program.
~~from the program with either the status Continue in Alternate(CA) or the status Dismissed from Program (DP).~~

Furthermore, students are expected to follow the directives laid out in the Carleton University Bachelor of Science in Nursing Conduct Policy both on- and off-campus.

New Resources	No New Resources
Summary	Remove reference to CA and DP, and add clarification that students will follow standard ACE regulations. Addition of continuous registration requirement.
Rationale for change	
Transition/ Implementation	

Program reviewer comments	angelwagner (03/07/25 4:23 pm): Rollback: Faculty Change
------------------------------	---

Program Change Request

Date Submitted: 02/11/25 9:49 am

Viewing: **R-UG-SW : R-UG-Social Work Professional Suitability Policy**

Last approved: 09/29/21 1:36 pm

Last edit: 02/11/25 10:02 am

Last modified by: angelwagner

[Changes proposed by: gabriellecrete](#)

In Workflow

1. REG-RO ChairDir UG
2. PRE SCCASP
3. SCCASP
4. PRE CalEditor
5. CalEditor

Approval Path

1. 03/13/25 3:22 pm
Erika Strathearn
(erikastrathearn):
Approved for REG-RO
ChairDir UG

History

1. Jan 13, 2016 by lisaralph
2. Apr 18, 2017 by Sandra Bauer (sandrabauer)
3. Apr 18, 2017 by Sandra Bauer (sandrabauer)
4. Sep 15, 2021 by Natalie Phelan (nataliephelan)
5. Sep 29, 2021 by Natalie Phelan (nataliephelan)

Calendar Pages Using this Program

[Social Work](#)

Effective Date	2025-26
Workflow	minormod
Program Code	R-UG-SW
Level	Undergraduate
Faculty	Not Applicable
Academic Unit	Regulations: RO

Degree

Title R-UG-Social Work Professional Suitability Policy

Program Requirements

Senate Policy on Social Work Professional Suitability

Students in the Bachelor of Social Work (Honours) are expected to conform to the Canadian Association of Social Workers (CASW) Code of Ethics and the Ontario College of Social Workers and Social Service Workers (OCSWSSW) Code of Ethics and Standards of Practice. Students who violate these codes of ethics may be required, in accordance with the Senate Policy on Social Work Professional Suitability, to withdraw [from the program](#).

~~from the program with either the status Continue in Alternate(CA) or the status Dismissed from Program (DP).~~

New Resources	No New Resources
Summary	Adjusting the policy wording to remove Academic Continuation Evaluation decisions with Continue in Alternate (CA) or Dismissed from Program (DP) and change the policy to specify that students who violate this policy will instead be removed from the Bachelor of Social Work program.
Rationale for change	Previous wording referred to removal from the program in relation to Academic Continuation Evaluation decisions, but this is not suitable for the specific policy violation. Therefore, removing the statement "with either the status Continue in Alternate (CA) or the status Dismissed from Program (DP)." to align the policy with university academic integrity sanctions.
Transition/ Implementation	<p>Implementation would involve the creation of the following sanction code which would result in the comment below appearing on the transcript for any student who is found in violation of these policies based on the internal and external review processes outlined in this policy. These recommendations were provided from the Registrar's Office.</p> <p>Code: IV – Inactive Standards Violation Transcript statement: Removed from program due to violation of the Senate Policy on Professional Suitability</p>

Program reviewer
comments

Key: 1312

Program Change Request

Date Submitted: 02/27/25 10:17 am

Viewing: **TBD-1844 : R-UG-2.1.2 Full- and Part-time Study**

Last approved: 03/20/24 4:13 pm

Last edit: 03/07/25 1:07 pm

Last modified by: angelwagner

Changes proposed by: angelwagner

In Workflow

- 1. REGS RO UG Review
- 2. PRE SCCASP
- 3. SCCASP
- 4. Senate
- 5. PRE CalEditor
- 6. CalEditor

Approval Path

- 1. 03/13/25 3:18 pm
Erika Strathearn
(erikastrathearn):
Approved for REGS RO
UG Review
- 2. 03/13/25 4:45 pm
Angel Wagner
(angelwagner): Approved
for PRE SCCASP

History

- 1. May 3, 2019 by Mike
Labreque (mikelabreque)
- 2. Mar 20, 2024 by Natalie
Phelan (nataliephelan)

Calendar Pages Using this Program [Registration, Evaluation and Student Records](#)

Effective Date	2025-26
Workflow	majormod
Program Code	TBD-1844
Level	Undergraduate
Faculty	Not Applicable
Academic Unit	Regulations: RO

Degree

Title R-UG-2.1.2 Full- and Part-time Study

Program Requirements

2.1.2 Full- and Part-time Study

When responding to a legitimate request from an external agency that has not supplied its own definition, the following definitions are used:

- 1. A *full-time undergraduate student* is one who is registered in at least 1.5 credits per academic term.
- 2. A *full course load* is the normal maximum course load as defined by the student's program and is evaluated term by term.

2.1.2.1 Regularly Scheduled Break (Undergraduate)

For immigration purposes, the summer term (May to August) is considered a regularly scheduled break approved by the University. Students should resume full-time studies in September.
Note: a regularly scheduled break as described for immigration purposes does not supersede the requirement to register in co-op, a practicum, an internship, continuous registration in a thesis course, or continuous registration required for the B.Sc.N. ~~continuous registration in a thesis course.~~ program.

New Resources	No New Resources
Summary	Adding B.Sc.N. requirement.
Rationale for change	Continuous registration is required for the B.Sc.N. program.
Transition/ Implementation	

Program reviewer
comments

Program Change Request

Date Submitted: 03/07/25 10:17 am

Viewing: **TBD-1839 : R-UG-2.2.2/3.4.1**
Minimum Number of Residency Credits

Last approved: 04/05/23 10:51 am

Last edit: 03/07/25 10:17 am

Last modified by: angelwagner

[Changes proposed by: angelwagner](#)

In Workflow

1. **REGS RO UG Review**
2. **PRE SCCASP**
3. SCCASP
4. Senate
5. PRE CalEditor
6. CalEditor

Approval Path

1. 03/13/25 3:18 pm
Erika Strathearn
(erikastrathearn):
Approved for REGS RO
UG Review

History

1. May 3, 2019 by Mike
Labreque (mikelabreque)
2. Apr 5, 2023 by Natalie
Phelan (nataliephelan)

Calendar Pages Using this
Program

[Registration, Evaluation and Student Records](#)
[Academic Regulations for Degree Students](#)

Effective Date 2025-26

Workflow [majormod](#) ~~minormod~~

Program Code TBD-1839

Level Undergraduate

Faculty Not Applicable

Academic Unit Regulations: RO

Degree

Title R-UG-2.2.2/3.4.1 Minimum Number of Residency Credits

Program Requirements

2.2.2/3.4.1 Minimum Number of Residency Credits

To be eligible for graduation with a Carleton degree, certificate or diploma, each student must present a certain number of credits earned at Carleton University which have not been presented to fulfil any degree that has been previously awarded, including a degree or degrees at Carleton University. These are referred to as residency credits. Courses taken under the University of Ottawa Exchange Agreement do not count as residency credits.

All degree students must present a minimum of 5.0 residency credits at graduation, with the following exceptions:

The minimum number of residency credits for students in the Dual Degree, B.Eng., B.I.D., ~~B.I.T.~~, and ~~B.I.T. B.A.S. Design non-Honours program~~ is half of the total number of credits required for the program. ~~The residency requirement for B.A.S. The Honours is the standard~~ minimum number of ~~5.0~~ residency credits for students in the B.Sc.N. at graduation is 13.5 credits.

To obtain a minor, a student must present at least 2.0 residency credits counting toward that minor.

To obtain an undergraduate certificate from Carleton University, students must present residency credits including a minimum of 4.0 credits taken at Carleton. The residency for certificates taken concurrently with a Carleton degree may be satisfied with credits used also to satisfy the degree residency requirement.

To obtain a post-baccalaureate diploma from Carleton University, students must present residency credits including a minimum of 3.0 credits taken at Carleton.

New Resources	No New Resources
Summary	Adding residency for B.Sc.N. and removing reference to BAS non-honours.
Rationale for change	New program in B.Sc.N. has a minimum residency of 13.5 credits. BAS non-honours is being delete for 2025-2026.
Transition/ Implementation	

Program reviewer comments	
------------------------------	--

Key: 1839

Program Change Request

Date Submitted: 02/27/25 10:30 am

Viewing: **TBD-1868 : R-UG-3.1.14**
Restrictions on Credit for Certain Courses

Last approved: 11/13/24 4:41 pm

Last edit: 03/07/25 2:37 pm

Last modified by: angelwagner

[Changes proposed by: angelwagner](#)

In Workflow

1. **REGS RO UG Review**
2. **PRE SCCASP**
3. SCCASP
4. Senate
5. PRE CalEditor
6. CalEditor

Approval Path

1. 03/13/25 3:19 pm
Erika Strathearn
(erikastrathearn):
Approved for REGS RO
UG Review

History

1. May 3, 2019 by Mike
Labreque (mikelabreque)
2. Mar 26, 2021 by Sarah
Cleary (sarahcleary)
3. May 3, 2021 by Natalie
Phelan (nataliephelan)
4. May 3, 2021 by Natalie
Phelan (nataliephelan)
5. Dec 17, 2021 by Natalie
Phelan (nataliephelan)
6. Apr 11, 2022 by Natalie
Phelan (nataliephelan)
7. Apr 5, 2023 by Natalie
Phelan (nataliephelan)
8. Nov 13, 2024 by Angel
Wagner (angelwagner)

Calendar Pages Using this
Program

[Academic Regulations for Degree Students](#)

Effective Date

2025-26

Workflow

[majormod](#) ~~minormod~~

Program Code	TBD-1868
Level	Undergraduate
Faculty	Not Applicable
Academic Unit	Regulations: RO
Degree	
Title	R-UG-3.1.14 Restrictions on Credit for Certain Courses

Program Requirements

3.1.14 Restrictions on Credit for Certain Courses

Some courses may not be used for credit in certain programs. Restrictions may be listed in the course descriptions, the academic regulations for certain degree programs, and/or in this section.

1. Co-operative Education (Co-op) work term and report courses do not count for credit in any degree.
2. B.A. students in Economics and B.Econ. students will not receive credit for MATH courses below the 1000-level.
3. Students in the B.Mus. degree will not receive credit for MUSI 1106 or MUSI 1107.
4. ~~Students in the B.Com. or the B.I.B.~~ Students in degree [programs offered by the Sprott School of Business](#) will not receive credit for BIT 2001, BIT 2002, [BUSI 3602, COMP 1001, ECON 0005](#), or any 0000-level mathematics course.
5. ~~Students in the B.Com. degree will not receive credit for BUSI 3602 or COMP1001.~~ Students admitted with advanced standing to the B.C.S., B.Eng., B.G.In.S., B.Hum., B.I.T., [B.P.A.P.M.](#), or [B.Sc.N.](#) ~~B.P.A.P.M.~~ degree will not receive credit on admission for courses with a grade below C- taken earlier.
6. For courses excluded from the B.Sc. see the Academic Regulations for the Bachelor of Science Degree section of this Calendar. For courses excluded from the B.Math. see the Mathematics programs section of this Calendar.

New Resources	No New Resources
Summary	BScN added to list of programs that will not receive advanced standing for courses below C-. Business restriction change to include all programs offered by the School to include new BAcc program.
Rationale for change	New BScN program added based on approved Admissions Regulations. New BAcc program added to list relevant to Business.
Transition/ Implementation	

Program reviewer comments	
---------------------------	--

Key: 1868

Program Change Request

Date Submitted: 11/22/24 11:40 am

Viewing: **TBD-1853 : R-UG-3.1.3 Absence from the University**

Last approved: 05/03/19 10:07 am

Last edit: 03/07/25 10:30 am

Last modified by: angelwagner

[Changes proposed by: angelwagner](#)

In Workflow

1. REGS RO UG Review
2. PRE SCCASP
3. SCCASP
4. Senate
5. PRE CalEditor
6. CalEditor

Approval Path

1. 03/13/25 3:20 pm
Erika Strathearn
(erikastrathearn):
Approved for REGS RO
UG Review

History

1. May 3, 2019 by Mike
Labreque (mikelabreque)

Calendar Pages Using this
Program

[Academic Regulations for Degree Students](#)

Effective Date	2025-26
Workflow	majormod
Program Code	TBD-1853
Level	Undergraduate
Faculty	Not Applicable
Academic Unit	Regulations: RO
Degree	
Title	R-UG-3.1.3 Absence from the University

Program Requirements

3.1.3 Absence from the University

Normally, a student is considered to be present at the University in a term in which they have remained registered in a course until after the last day for withdrawal with a full fee adjustment. A student who is not present at the University is considered to be absent from the University.

Degree students who have not been present at the University for more than nine consecutive terms must apply for readmission through Admission Services.

Note: students in the Bachelor of Science in Nursing (Honours) and Bachelor of Science in Nursing (Major) require continuous registration to retain status in their program, refer to the [Nursing program regulations](#).

Students who have completed the requirements for the degree and program in which they are registered will be automatically considered for graduation after three consecutive terms of absence from the University.

New Resources	No New Resources
Summary	Adding Nursing exception to 3.1.3.
Rationale for change	Clarifying regulation for Nursing students.
Transition/ Implementation	

Program reviewer
comments

Key: 1853

Program Change Request

New Program Proposal

Date Submitted: 02/11/25 3:33 pm

Viewing: **TBD-2308 : R-UG-3.2.7 Bachelor of Cybersecurity**

Last edit: 02/11/25 3:33 pm

Last modified by: angelwagner

Changes proposed by: angelwagner

In Workflow

1. REGS RO UG Review
2. PRE SCCASP
3. SCCASP
4. Senate
5. PRE CalEditor
6. CalEditor

Approval Path

1. 03/13/25 3:21 pm
Erika Strathearn
(erikastrathearn):
Approved for REGS RO
UG Review

Effective Date	2025-26
Workflow	majormod
Program Code	TBD-2308
Level	Undergraduate
Faculty	Not Applicable
Academic Unit	Regulations: RO
Degree	Not Applicable
Title	R-UG-3.2.7 Bachelor of Cybersecurity

Program Requirements

Academic Continuation Evaluation for Bachelor of Cybersecurity (Honours)

Students in the B.Cyber. (Honours) follow the continuation requirements for Honours programs, as described in [Section 3.2.6](#) of the *Academic Regulations of the University*, with the following addition:

- Students with 15.5 or more program credits completed, but who have a Major CGPA less than 6.00, will be required to leave the B.Cyber. program with the decision *Required to Withdraw for Two Terms* (WT).

New Resources	No New Resources
Summary	ACE regulations for new BCyber program.
Rationale	Honours programs with no corresponding non-honours program will be assessed using the program rules reflected in Section 3.2.7 of the Academic Regulations of the University.
Transition/ Implementation	

Program reviewer comments	
------------------------------	--

Key: 2308

Program Change Request

New Program Proposal

Date Submitted: 02/11/25 3:32 pm

Viewing: **TBD-2307 : R-UG-3.2.7 Bachelor of Data Science**

Last edit: 02/11/25 3:32 pm

Last modified by: angelwagner

Changes proposed by: angelwagner

In Workflow

1. REGS RO UG Review
2. PRE SCCASP
3. SCCASP
4. Senate
5. PRE CalEditor
6. CalEditor

Approval Path

1. 03/13/25 3:21 pm
Erika Strathearn
(erikastrathearn):
Approved for REGS RO
UG Review

Effective Date	2025-26
Workflow	majormod
Program Code	TBD-2307
Level	Undergraduate
Faculty	Not Applicable
Academic Unit	Regulations: RO
Degree	Not Applicable
Title	R-UG-3.2.7 Bachelor of Data Science

Program Requirements

Academic Continuation Evaluation for Bachelor of Data Science (Honours)

Students in the B.D.S. (Honours) follow the continuation requirements for Honours programs, as described in [Section 3.2.6](#) of the *Academic Regulations of the University*, with the following addition:

- Students with 15.5 or more program credits completed, but who have a Major CGPA less than 6.00, will be required to leave the B.D.S. program with the decision *Required to Withdraw for Two Terms* (WT).

New Resources	No New Resources
Summary	ACE regulations for new BDS program.
Rationale	Honours programs with no corresponding non-honours program will be assessed using the program rules reflected in Section 3.2.7 of the Academic Regulations of the University.
Transition/ Implementation	

Program reviewer comments	
------------------------------	--

Key: 2307

Program Change Request

Date Submitted: 03/04/25 11:01 am

Viewing: **TBD-1378 : R-ADM-Program-B.P.A.P.M.**

Last approved: 02/02/22 10:50 am

Last edit: 03/04/25 11:01 am

Last modified by: jenniferelliott

Changes proposed by: jenniferelliott

In Workflow

1. REGS ADM Review
2. PRE SCCASP
3. SCCASP
4. Senate
5. PRE CalEditor
6. CalEditor

Approval Path

1. 03/04/25 11:02 am
Jennifer Elliott
(jenniferelliott):
Approved for REGS ADM
Review

History

1. Jan 21, 2016 by Sandra Bauer (sandrabauer)
2. Apr 18, 2017 by Sandra Bauer (sandrabauer)
3. May 11, 2021 by Natalie Phelan (nataliephelan)
4. Feb 2, 2022 by Natalie Phelan (nataliephelan)

Calendar Pages Using this Program [Public Affairs and Policy Management](#)
[Public Affairs and Policy Management](#)

Effective Date	2025-26
Workflow	majormod
Program Code	TBD-1378
Level	Undergraduate
Faculty	Not Applicable
Academic Unit	Regulations: Admissions

Degree

Title R-ADM-Program-B.P.A.P.M.

Program Requirements

Admissions Information

Admission requirements are based on the Ontario High School System. Prospective students can view the admission requirements through the Admissions website at admissions.carleton.ca. The overall average required for admission is determined each year on a program-by-program basis. Holding the minimum admission requirements only establishes eligibility for consideration; higher averages are required for admission to programs for which the demand for places by qualified applicants exceeds the number of places available. All programs have limited enrolment and admission is not guaranteed. Some programs may also require specific course prerequisites and prerequisite averages and/or supplementary admission portfolios. Consult admissions.carleton.ca for further details.

Note: If a course is listed as recommended, it is not mandatory for admission. Students who do not follow the recommendations will not be disadvantaged in the admission process.

Degree

- B.P.A.P.M. (Honours)

Admission Requirements

First Year

The Ontario Secondary School Diploma (OSSD) or equivalent including a minimum of six 4U or M courses.

Advanced Standing

Applications for admission with advanced standing to the program will be assessed on their merits. Normally, offers are made to students with an overall CGPA of 9.00 (B+) or [higher](#).

~~higher.~~

~~Students must also present at least one of the following: ECON 1001, ECON 1002, or a second-year Political Science course with a minimum grade of B.~~ Advanced standing will be granted only for those courses deemed appropriate to the program. Students will not receive credit for courses graded below C-.

Co-op Option

Direct Admission to the first year of the Co-op Option

Applicants must:

1. meet the required overall admission cut-off average and/or prerequisite course average. These averages may be higher than the stated minimum requirements;
2. be registered as a full-time student in the B.P.A.P.M. (Honours) program;

3. be eligible to work in Canada (for off-campus work placements).

Meeting the above requirements only establishes eligibility for admission to the program. The prevailing job market may limit enrolment in the co-op option.

Note: continuation requirements for students previously admitted to the co-op option and admission requirements for the co-op option after beginning the program are described in the Co-operative Education Regulations section of this Calendar.

New Resources	No New Resources
Summary	Updating advanced standing admission requirements.
Rationale for change	In consultation with the PAPM Program Director, removing the pre-requisite courses for advanced standing to align with the first-year admission requirement with no prerequisites.
Transition/ Implementation	N/A

Program reviewer
comments

Key: 1378